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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:   --and if we could, actually, let’s get members here if we could.  And Mr. Yee’s here and we need, are there two more?  Let me make some calls to Senator Denham and Senator Wyland.  The other two are not going to be here today. Senator Vincent isn’t going to be here and ______.  
SENATOR JEFF DENHAM:  Government Organization and Veterans’ Affairs Committee.  First I’ll start with opening remarks.  Senator Wyland.

SENATOR MARK WYLAND:  Thank you, Senator Denham.  And I don’t actually, I had some brief opening remarks, but I don’t see Senator Florez in the room to whom they’re also addressed, but anyway, I want to thank the chairman, as well as you, acting chairman, for bringing this attention, this matter to the attention of both committees, to the guests and Veterans Committee audience.  There obviously, it is important that we do the right thing by veterans.  We’re looking forward to testimony of DGS in regards to implementation of Senator Florez’s bill.  And probably the Veterans Committee will hold a separate hearing on this issue.  And I want to thank the Chairman and others for continuing to focus on it.  Thank you.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator Wyland, and thank you for doing this in the Joint Committee hearing.  As most of you know, Senator Morrow and I used to have these hearings every so often, and we have a new committee, the DGS component has moved to the Modernization Committee which did not give us jurisdiction.  This now brings with the end of that committee to ___ the issue of the DGS particularly contracting now as we turn back to the G.O. Committee.  So I plan to, hopefully, work with Senator Wyland and he’s going to have a hearing.  But I’d like to see if we can do this on a yearly basis and not just this department.  In many cases there’ll be other departments, but I think the message we want to send, bottom line is that, you know, some of the bills that we pass, this is going to sound very scary to most of the people in the building, but when we pass a bill, we just want to see if it’s implemented.  And so, you know, ultimately I think that’s our purview in the Legislature and those of you who know me, know that oversight is a very important component, particularly of this committee.  I think we have more oversight committees of the G.O Committee, this committee particularly, than we do of bill hearings.  So this is our opportunity to, in essence, see where we’re at.  
There’s no doubt that recognizing the contribution of veterans goes far back as Senator Ralph Dills in 1989 which who authored SB 1517 which originally started with the three percent participation goal for disabled veterans’ business enterprises, most of those for professional bond services.  And then we moved into 1990 and we started to extend those to the University of California and the Department of Corrections and specified utilities in the State of California.  And then Senator Dills again authored SCR 18 in 1993 in which we encouraged local entities to enact ordinances and implement policies for DVBE and construction procurement contracts.  As most of you know, Congress expressed some support for these programs, as well, with a three percent participation goal modeled after California’s law.  And since the inception of the DVBE program, and mostly through Senator Dill’s efforts and the California Legislature, those who have come back and served honorably and selflessly at great personal risk have a program that they can look to, hopefully with some glimmer in their eye in terms of being self sufficient.  
I can tell you that we, as I mentioned earlier, this promise has been somewhat elusive.  Over the years numerous state agencies and entities have fallen quite short of the three percent participation goal, and I’m glad that Senator Wyland has agreed, at least at this particular hearing, to have some opportunity to listen to what precisely is happening with the bill that we passed and the Governor signed, SB 115.  This won’t be the first of last chairman, obviously, we have on participation and contracting, but I can tell you that the three percent goal that we’ve learned over the three or four hearings we’ve had on this is we’ve not historically done very well on it.  And hopefully we can get some answers on what we’re doing to rectify that and how everything is going.

I can tell you just in closing that obviously the issue of returning soldiers from Iraq and Afghanistan, we want to make sure they understand we’re doing everything we can to prepare.  There is going to be an influx, and ought to make sure that we’re prepared as we have these hearings and we move forward.  So with that, Senator Wyland, I thank you.  And again, we have DGS here, Will Bush, Rita Hamilton, and Andrew Chang.  Is that correct?
MR. WILL BUSH:  If I may begin?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You may begin.

MR. BUSH:  Thank you.  Thank you, Chairman Florez, Chairman Wyland, and senators.  I’m Will Bush.  I’m the interim director of the Department of General Services, and I’m certainly pleased to be here to speak with you today.  With me on my right is Rita Hamilton, the deputy over Procurement Division.  And on my left is Doug Button, the deputy over the Real Estate Services Division.

First of all, let me express our commitment and the commitment of the Administration, The Department of General Services and the Department of Veterans Affairs and the Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise program.  It’s important not only for disabled veterans, but also for California’s economy.  The Governor and the Department strongly support the full participation of veterans in these various procurements, because as I’m sure most of you probably are aware, they are $9 billion worth of contracts on an annual basis.

Let me move to the West Los Angeles, Lancaster, and Veterans and Ventura veterans homes.  As your letter indicated, we’re here to discuss our efforts in developing three new veterans’ homes.  The Department of General Services, the Department of Veterans’ Affairs have all worked together on a major outreach effort to promote disabled veterans business participation in these projects.  We’ve held four large scale meetings in Southern California.  The state’s team consisted of Veterans’ Affairs, DGS project directors, real estate services, contracts and procurement officials to discuss project details.  Our Office of Small Business and Disabled Veterans were on site to assist with certification that day and certify businesses on site.  

As I mentioned, I brought along our two deputy directors to give you details, but before I let them speak, let me first speak to our progress on SB 115.  We did complete regulations and they were submitted to the office of Administrative Law last Thursday.  We expect that they will be posted April 6.  It was important for us to get these right, because past effort on these are less than I think we all had hoped for.  It took more time than all of us had anticipated to tune these regulations so they worked for everyone.

With respect to our overall disabled veteran business enterprise effort, although we’ve seen gains as you suggest, we’re not satisfied.  This last year our results show there was a 2.4 percent participation rate, although it’s better than the 1.72 percent last year, it’s still short of the Governor’s goal of three percent.

Some stats from last year, total contract dollars increased by over 75 percent to $188 million.  And the overall contracts to disabled veterans was almost 7.5 percent.  But, again, that’s still not enough.  Many of the actions we’ve taken this last year we hope will pay dividends this upcoming year.  But, I will let the real experts discuss the details of these programs.  I want to thank you for having us here.  I look forward to working with you on our efforts to provide meaningful business opportunities to our disabled veterans.  Thank you.  
MS. RITA HAMILTON:  Good morning.  My name is Rita Hamilton.  And I wanted to tell you I’m the deputy director for Procurement Division.  And my department is responsible for the small business and the disabled veteran business programs.  We’re responsible for the certification of those two entities for state certification.  And we’re also responsible for gathering the data to provide the Legislature the yearly report on small business and disabled veteran businesses.

With that, we’re also responsible for all the outreach efforts.  We take our outreach opportunities and the communications about outreach very seriously.  Last year I’m happy to say we did over eighty events throughout the State of California, five which we call our signature events.  They’re collaboration conferences.  We were able to bring over 80 state departments to these conferences to meet personally the small business and particularly, the disabled veteran businesses face-to-face, so the firms can actually meet the people within the state that are letting contracts.  We’ve gotten feedback from the community that this is very important to them to be able to have that face-to-face contact.  

We’ve also coordinated our efforts with the Disabled Veteran Business Alliance and they’ve been our partners in these events in terms of hosting town hall meetings when we have events, having their disabled veterans council meetings when we have the event to actually bring more of the organizations out to get them certified.  

I want to tell you particularly about one thing we’re very proud of and in the past there’s been, you’ve probably heard that we’ve had backlogs in our certification process.  This year in February, we actually rolled out a program called online certification that we’re very proud of, because actually the certification is now done within a day.  If there’s any paperwork that may be involved, the paperwork is sent my fax or mailed in and we can get that certification done within the week.  So the certifications have gone up.  Right now we have 934 certified disabled veteran business enterprises, 232 of those which are construction firms.  We also have 13,600 certified small business firms.

So while we, as Mr. Bush mentioned, while we’ve not met our goal this year again, we’re at 2.42 percent statewide, we take this commitment very seriously.  We’ve not stopped.  We’re doing an incredible amount of outreach again this year.  We’re going to be working with the Small Business Alliance again, and the California Veterans Association to make the events even bigger this year and to reach out to as many disabled veteran businesses as we can to increase those numbers.  Thank you.
MR. DOUG BUTTON:  Thank you.  My name is Doug Button.  I’m the deputy director of the Real Estate Services Division, and I have direct responsibility for the oversight of the Department’s public works construction contracts, the architects and engineers, professional services contracts, and the goods and services contracts utilized and serviced the nearly 25 million square feet of state owned buildings which the Department maintains and manages.  

I’d like to talk for just a moment about some of the outreach that we did with regards to the Southern California veterans’ home projects.  We refer to those as the GLAVC projects, if you may hear that in this ____ morning.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  ____ projects?

MR. BUTTON:  GLAVC which stands for Greater Los Angeles Ventura County is the initials for the project.  It’s called throughout our offices and those of the Veterans Affairs the GLAVC project.  And that combines all three projects, one in Lancaster, one in Ventura County, and one in West Los Angeles.  So if you hear it referred to this morning as the GLAVC project, you’ll understand that it’s the three veterans homes.

As Director Bush had mentioned earlier, we did have a significant outreach program on this project.  It was a little different than anything we had ever done before.  We got together with the Veterans Affairs.  We also asked the Alliance to join us.  And we spent quite a bit of time trying to determine what we were going to do in order to ensure that we could increase the participation.  Our sights were set at five percent.  What we did was to have a particular meeting at each of the different sites on the bid, not on the bid walk day, but on the site walk day so that we could take an opportunity to have both the disabled veterans contractors meet along with the prime contractors and see if we could create some relationships, number one.  
Another thing we were looking to do was to be able to present to them an understanding of what the project was.  As Rita says, we had staff from a procurement group that went down and spent time trying to see if we could find existing contractors, subcontractors that were not yet certified so that we could certify them on site.  We did some of that.  But, in preparing to have this meet and greet process we actually did three advertisements that were placed from the California State Contracts register.  They ran from the beginning of December through the day of the outreach meetings which was about two weeks.  

We placed 16 ads in well-known trade papers and general circulation newspapers.  Trade ads ran both in Northern California and Southern California.  The advertisements in the other newspapers ran within the cities and the counties where the projects were going to be built.  In addition to paid advertisements, copies of the advertisements were sent to trade papers for publication in their out to bid section.  We also sent copies of the advertisement to each of the certified disabled veterans throughout the state of California to ensure they were aware of these meetings.  

In attendance, we had representatives from the city and the state along with disabled veterans firms, disabled veterans advocates, and general contractors.  We felt that they were very successful.  In Lancaster, we had 17 disabled veterans firms show up.  In Ventura, we had 10.  We had over 20 in West Los Angeles meeting.  The meetings turned out to be an excellent resource for the Department of General Services to meet with potential disabled veterans firms and explain ways they could participate in state projects.  We were again able to assist several firms become a state certified as DVBEers, small businesses.
One of the things that we felt we did accomplish, we didn’t reach out five percent goals or don’t yet believe we reached our five percent goals.  We won’t know that until we finish doing the due diligence on these three separate projects, but what we do know is that the initial indication is that across the board on the three different projects, we look like we’re right about two percent.  And for an initial reading, that’s pretty good, because we have the remainder of the contract period in order to increase that.  We talked with the different apparent low bidders and they all indicate that they’re interested in working with us and allowing us to work with them and the subcontractors to determine who they may be working with in the future as they continue to subcontract on these projects and allow us to have discussions with them, find out if they are in fact disabled veterans, find out if they’re capable of being certified as disabled veterans.  So we expect that those numbers will increase during the term of the project.  Thank you.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  If I could just ask a couple questions.  Senator Wyland probably has some questions, as well.  But, just big picture going over the GLAVC project for a moment and using some larger numbers.  I think Ms. Hamilton, you said you had 232 DVBE construction firms that are—okay, and I guess in terms of the Veterans Affairs side of it, and Mr. Button, you’re with again?  I’m sorry.

MR. DOUG BUTTON:  The Department of General Services Real Estate Services Division.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you said in Lancaster we had 17 show.  In Ventura we had 10.  In West Los Angeles had 20.  And I guess just my simple calculation is if I were to say how many were available in the State of California—we’re .07, .04, and .08s.  We’re not even at one percent participation in terms of getting people to meet prime, so and you mentioned advertising, as well.  Now did the advertising go to the disabled veteran community, or did it go to the primes that should be interested in working with DVBEs?  Where are the ads targeted?

MS. HAMILTON:  One of the things that DGS has begun in many of our large contracts and that’s what we call our partnering conferences.  And the advertisement went out on the internet.  It’s sent to those that are listed as construction firms.  They all get notices.  But in addition to that, I know that the California Veterans Association plus the alliance did an incredible amount of outreach.  But what we do, let me describe the partnering conferences a minute.  At the hearing, at the pre-bid conferences, we actually invite all the primes and all the DVBEs to meet each other so that they have an opportunity to partner and to know what services that the disabled veteran businesses can provide, and then they have a chance to use that information and make agreements between themselves if they want to partner on the projects, the GLAVC projects.
It’s been a very good tool.  We’ve used it on goods, we’ve used it on other projects, and this using it on these projects I think has been very positive, as well.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the GLAVC, the overall GLAVC project then—what was the percent then ultimately?

MR. BUTTON:  Over the three separate projects it is about two percent.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that is an average among all the projects?

MR. BUTTON:  That is correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what is the Lancaster home?

MR. BUTTON:  The Lancaster is at 0.21 percent.  The West Los Angeles is 1.8 percent.  And the Ventura is over eight percent.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So what worked in Ventura that didn’t work in the other two areas?

MR. BUTTON:  Well specifically one thing that worked in Ventura was that the apparent low-bidder in Ventura had a relationship with a specific trade organization that isn’t backed a certified disabled veteran.  

MS. HAMILTON:  If I could mention one other thing.  While I said there was 232 certified disabled veteran business firms, they are not located geographically split throughout the State of California.  So one of the other reasons why you may get a higher percentage in an area like Los Angeles as opposed to Lancaster is the amount that are in that concentrated metropolitan area.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and so Lancaster, much lower but West L.A. probably has a higher density of DVBEs than Ventura, correct?  And yet it was below one percent.  So I’m just wondering on the participation, how do we—the internet, there’s notices, but how does a, how do the pairings really occur in some meaningful way.  You mentioned that Ventura had an ongoing relationship with a DVBE which allowed it to reach the seven percent.  I mean, how do we establish those types of relationships going forward with, if you will, DVBEs so that our statistics look better and more participation?  I mean, you can’t force someone to use them, right?  DVBEs.  So we put a bill in to try to incentivize that.  So the question is, did it work or didn’t?  Because in this case, it doesn’t seem as though it meant much. 
MR. BUTTON:  That is correct, Mr. Chairman.  I think the way that we try to increase the participation is as Rita’s been mentioning, the outreach programs that we continue to do.  I think it’s also important that we take into consideration the differences in some of these projects.  As an example, if there are firms that are applying in Ventura, they’re located closely to Ventura, they may not want to travel all the way out to Lancaster.  They may have been contacted, in fact.  They may have discussed it.  They may have preferred not to participate in the Lancaster contract.  
With regards to the West Los Angeles, I think it’s important to understand that’s a $183 million project.  And at $183 million a lot of the subcontractors and the prime contractor are going to be larger contractors.  The portion of the steel, for instance, or the concrete is going to be much larger in the West Los Angeles contract than it is going to be in the Ventura contract.  It may very well be that some of the disabled veterans contractors participating in this program don’t have the ability to be either insured or bonded to the limits necessary for them to take on these bigger subcontracts.  And so what we end up seeing is that probably the fourth or fifth tier subcontractors in these types of projects are the ones that we are able to incorporate the disabled veterans in.  And when we get the initial bid, we don’t see anything more than the primes participation and possibly the first or second tier subcontractor participation.  That’s why I said we will see an increase in participation as we begin to understand who the subcontractors are in the third, fourth, fifth, and sixth tier.  

MR. BUSH:  Mr. Chairman, if I might—there are two issues here clearly we need to deal with and as your question is certainly a good one, which is how do we increase participation.  The second issue clearly is price.  And what we need to do is find a way of ensuring that the ultimate low bidder does have sufficient participation, because I think we will see on these contracts, there are others that do have higher levels of participation, but ultimately the price is significantly higher. 
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Uh huh, yes.

SENATOR WYLAND:  There’s obviously a lot of when you get into actual building, you get into a lot of many issues here.  I just want to pick up on this one comment about second, and third, and fourth tier.  Are you saying that if you’ve let a contract with a general and perhaps some of the bigger subcontractors that the smaller contracts that might apply to the disabled veteran groups, you will not have seen because they have not been let?  Is that what you’re saying?
MR. BUTTON:  That is correct.  For that information has not been passed forward to the general contractor.

SENATOR WYLAND:  Well, that leads me to as we go through this, and I want to say at the outset I’m new to this, but seems to me that first of all the goal is certainly laudable, and I appreciate Senator Florez working on this issue.  I’d love to see it even higher.  But, the reality of construction is you have to have a pool to draw from, and as Chairman Florez is indicating, you have to know that they’re not only there, but they are informed in the rest of it.  So, with these increased regulations, do we know for example, is there a list of all those who meet the criteria, their bonding capacity, so that for example, we could simply say in a given project, here’s an available pool that could do this, because otherwise it strikes me what you’re reduced to is outreach when in fact we kind of need to know who’s there.  Because for all we know there are some there that we ought to be contacting directly, or maybe some of our efforts ought to be to help in encouraging some of these folks to create their own businesses so they could quality.  So could you just comment on that?

MR. BUSH:  Sure, let me start and I will ask Ms. Hamilton to continue.  We’ve been working with the Alliance and others to put together such lists because that issue has come up.  Ideally, what we need to put together is a, you know, block of various businesses that provide different services.  Because as we were chatting in one of the recent meetings that I attended and I’m relatively new to this also, there are businesses out there when you do a large construction project and we’re speaking particularly in highway construction where you might need a fencing contractor.  You might need a landscaping contractor all of whom could be disabled veteran businesses and from what we have today, some of that is difficult to discern.  I think we’ve made some progress as we moved forward over the last several months, but I’m not sure we’re quite yet there.
SENATOR WYLAND:  Let me just respond to that just right now.  If I’m a general, I was in the building industry, although not as a contractor—if I’m a general, and I want to go bid, as I assemble that bid, and I’m going to plug something in all the way down for the whole project, and I may know well this particular part, fencing, is going to run in this particular range, but it sure makes it a lot more accurate bidding if I can say, wow, here’s my list.  Here’s the list of disabled veterans businesses that can qualify.  I’m going to approach them right now.  Because typically I think what they do is they either have subs that they know, they can plug in a number, or they’re going to go out and get a specific bid for that.  And somehow it seems to me as part of making this work, it kind of gets around the outreach and you’ve said you’ve made it easier for them to register online, we got to talk to them so we can match them up.  Yet also allows us then to get a sense of well are there extra costs and what are they?  From my own personal point of view, I’m willing to do more for them.  I don’t, it’s okay if there’s an extra cost, but we ought to know what parameters we’re talking about so we can, you know, move the spirit of Senator Florez’s bill forward.  Just you know, how mechanically we do this.

MS. HAMILTON:  I appreciate that comment, because I think it’s an excellent idea.  While we have lists of who those certified firms are for disabled veterans business and we have them broken down by service, construction, goods, we haven’t taken that extra step.  And I think that that’s something that I’d personally like to explore and put that list together.
SENATOR WYLAND:  It would sure make it a lot easier.  If I’m the bidder and I know these are my parameters, boom.  I can go and see these.  And then it allows us to see where there are gaps and where we can figure out ways of ____.

MR. BUSH:  And again, we are committed as you are.  You raised an excellent point and we’re committed to working with the community and others to identify who can provide what services in what area, because clearly, that pairing will make the difference.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How does—I’m sorry, Senator Wyland.  Do you have—how does someone, just to follow up with Senator Wyland’s line of questioning, how does—and I’m not from the construction industry, so how does someone find out about your bid nine times out of 10?  In other words, are they really flipping through trade magazines or are they checking online?  They’re always, obviously discussing big projects like this here at the state.  But at the end of the day are they going online or are they downloading a PDF?  I mean, what’s the normal process for some construction company on a large job—let’s use the homes for a moment, just say, look, we’re going for this and we’ve been waiting for this RFP or RFQ or whatever it is.  I mean, how does that—
MS. HAMILTON:  We have a couple of tools that we communicate and give classes on for the small business and the disabled veteran community.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I’m talking about the primes.

MS. HAMILTON:  And for the primes, as well.  For everyone.  We have what we call our contracts register, the state contracts register.  And a firm can go and all state contracts that are let are put on the state contract register.  Now the other thing that any firm can do, and it’s online, the other thing a firm can do is they can register with our, it’s called our subscription services.  You register as a business.  You write down the key word, so if you’re a construction business, if you’re a consulting service, you put that down.  Every time a contract is put on the contract register and it has those key words, you’re automatically sent an email and told to go to, there’s a bid you will be interested in in your area.  That’s just one area that we do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let me go through both of those.  In terms of increasing the pool of DVBEs, I mean, is it not possible—let’s use subscription services.  You actually have huge list, so you’re sending hot lines type requests when anything new that they have keyed in as a key word comes up.  So in other words, you’ve got a huge data base.  I mean, is it possible when a DVBE registers online to take that DVB, let’s say it’s architecture or construction or drawings, renderings, whatever it is, to also send out alert out to that large list so that people know automatically, wow, there’s just been a new DVBE that has registered that does something that I might be interested as I start to prepare for, if you will, some other bids.  And it may not just be us at the state.  It could be other bids.  I mean, is that a possibility to use that system and that’s real time, so in other words, you know, and Senator Wyland knows, I mean, we read what we want to read what we don’t want to read, but at least we’re setting out a notice that somebody says, well, it’s _____ services.  What I really wanted is key words that match the things that I do, but at the end of the day, our commitment from the state is also send, you know, a key word in every contract line should be DVBE or small business, so they’re getting something that we’re pushing almost from the state.  So they have some.  That’s one.  Can we do that with subscription services?  
And number two, for the register, now those are folks that can then download the PDF, I assume.  Is it possible to put that list together, DVBEs, that are also downloaded in that document?  So, in other words, you might put your document on PDF, but Appendix II is a list of qualified DVBEs that go out with every single download when someone’s pulling down that particular request, so that they know as they prepare for their request for proposal or RFQ, whatever the process is, that they have the list.  It’s with them.  They’ve downloaded it, and ultimately it’s something that they could provide.  And it isn’t them getting together at a conference.  It’s real time, real firms that come with this.  Are those two possibilities?  
MS. HAMILTON:  Well, one of the things we do currently and those are definitely, we can explore those further, one thing we do now is we train all the contracts personnel within the state to when you’re going to be putting out any time of bid, you want to check that automatically.  It’s part of their process in letting out a bid, they check for small business and they check for disabled veteran business enterprises.  And then those can be sent directly to those firms immediately.  But, in terms of using the SOS and the contracts register as, you know, getting the information more direct, I’m going to need to look into the capabilities of ____.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there a website for DVBEs in any state in any of our programs?  I mean, if I open your website up does it say disabled veterans, you know, bidders attention?  And I can click all the way through to see a list?  Has that happened?

MS. HAMILTON:  I don’t think it’s to that level.  When you, we certainly have a website for disabled veterans business enterprises.  I can’t answer that question.  I have to go back and get that answer for you.  

MR. BUSH:  Let me speak directly to your question which is, you know, could it be done?  Of course, anything can be done with technology these days.  Clearly it’s just the energy and effort that it takes to do it.  With respect to pushing new DVBE vendors out is something that we could add on to that.  I think we probably wouldn’t want to ask the individual contractors what they would want to see much like you do today.  Do you want us to continue to send you these kinds of notifications?  Certainly on the second issue which is I think if I understood your question when a contract goes out, could a list of vendors I would suspect that in that vicinity be sent to along with that contract, is that my understanding?
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, I think at least some reasonable vicinity.  But at the end of the day, it gives someone, it says that the state is pushing something.  It guess that’s the issue is that how much are we pushing beyond the conferences.  I want to ask you what your budget is for these.  I’m sure it’s probably not much in terms of what you do in terms of the, as you mentioned, getting the primes together on a lot of these things.  But, you know, I think from a web perspective, from a business perspective, people who are downloading RFPs, people who are looking for, you know, business opportunities should have, you know, push from the state on—

MR. BUSH:  I would agree.  And I think it also shows leadership in terms of how committed are we to in effect, doing this.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I mean, it’s just, we’re the G.O. Committee, and Senator Wyland’s joined our committee this year, but if I go to the horse racing website, you know, it says, you know, and this is state website.  It changed it since their last hearing, I assume.  But you could click through all the way down to the race track.  I mean, we’re the state and we’re not, we’re promoting, we have a horse racing board, but yet, you know, it can click all the way through to a race track and you can click all the way through a betting platform.  I mean, we can do, if we can go all the way to that extreme, which seems a bit perverse, you know, moving our own website connected to something like that, I’m just wondering why we couldn’t, working with the Alliance, create a web-based system.  I mean, I like, because you’ve given that opportunity now.  You have an online registration process.  Then we have an opportunity to give people immediate information based through the web all the click clicking all the way through down to the firm.  And we should encourage all the DVBEs to create a very simple website on their firm, their qualifications.  And I’m sure a DVBE firm could create that website for most folks.  So, I’m just wondering if that’s a possibility, because I see very low participation rates.  I think you have low participation rates when you have 20 people, 10 people, 20, 17 firms, 10 firms, and 20 firms each appear on a huge project like West L.A. Veterans Home.  I mean, that’s 310 million or something of that sort.  Are all these project pretty big?
MR. BUSH:  No, the West L.A. is 183 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Total $300 million.

MR. BUSH:  Total 223 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, that’s a pretty big project, and I, you know, I’m just wondering if that’s, I think getting participation up, as Senator Wyland said, is really the key more than anything else.  And it seems as though the commitment, you know, you can’t force prime to take someone.  I wish you could.  But at the end of the day, I’m wondering how to connect, you know, how to get that participation rate up, so that the primes really do know.
MR. BUSH:  Let us commit that we will go back and I know staff will probably cringe as I, you know, commit resources, because as you suggest, funding is not significant in this arena.  But, let us commit that we will go back, because ideally, that will be a great service that we could provide the contractors so as they bid on these, they can drill down and find, you know, construction firms within the area that will assist them in meeting goals.

SENATOR WYLAND:  Thank you.  I’d just like to make one other comment.  I hope in other panels will get some ideas along these lines.  I came to the Legislature from business, and I can tell you, businesses are looking for business.  If you’re a contractor, you are looking for jobs that you can get.  So somehow, and I’m not certain yet quite how we get there, it shouldn’t—I’m not certain what all the factors may be, but I hope we can hear some more later to give us ideas, because if they’re out there, they’re eager and hungry.  This is what they want to do and especially there are contracts where there is any kind of an inside track, they’re going to be all over it.
So, hopefully we can hear, get some more ideas to make this happen.  It’s not as if you have to sort of encourage people to do this.  We’re just going to have to figure out how to make those connections happen.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s see if I have just a few more questions.  Senator Wiggins, you have questions?  So, the prime again is the persons that are bidding.  You mentioned earlier the levels that you get to see.  Level one, level two, I think.  What were the levels that you see over ____?

MR. BUTTON:  Well, the general contractor is in fact the prime and the prime contractor goes out to bid with the subcontractors.  That prime may not know how many additional subs each of his level one subcontractors may end up utilizing on the job.  And so there can be, you know, five, six, seven, ten different tiers of subcontractors.  What we would typically see in a bid of what we are typically aware of at the time of the bid is the contractors that the prime is familiar with and/or the first level, first tier level of subs is familiar with relative to if they’re aware that they have a DVBE certification.  If they do, they will report that in the bid proposal.  There may be many more that they either aren’t aware they have the certification, or they will be actually going out at a later date to try and pick up some additional subcontractors as the project moves on.  They don’t hire all the subs all the way down the tiers ____.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  I see.  So once the proposal is put forth, they’re not giving you A-Z, they’re maybe giving you A-P and the rest will be filled as the process moves forward.  So we’re crossing our fingers, hopeful that you may have DVBEs.  But, isn’t that really where, at that next level where DVBEs have the largest opportunity to participate?  So in other words—
MR. BUTTON:  That is correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  so, in other words, they give you the big folks.  Here’s our, we’re the prime, and here are large firms that are taking each piece of this project.  And then you get to another level and the large firms say, we’re going to kind of use these three people each.  But, then there’s that P-Z that you may not see and these folks then may go out and then find DVBEs, but they can’t really tell you that at that point, because all they’ve done is want to bid at some point in A-P.  

MR. BUTTON:  That is exactly correct.  That is why we are committed to working with the subcontractors, with the general contractors and the subcontractors throughout the term of the contract to ensure that we understand each and every one of the subcontractors throughout the process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s a hard—that’s a very difficult for me to hold you to a standard that and ultimately where a contracting only ends at A-P.  And I think you folks are hopeful that P-Z includes the very firms that probably fall into those categories, versus, I mean I’m sure if there’s, let’s use Ventura for a moment.  Ventura had a very high participation rate, correct?  Over seven percent.  And I bet you one of those DVBEs was one of those primes or sub primes.  It wasn’t in that second, third, or fourth tier.  But, I bet it was somewhat prominent.  Is that correct?
MR. BUTTON:  It was one of the larger subcontractors.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, so in other words, they came in and you saw it right away.  Probably somewhere in the analysis of even the original bid.  You say, it’s in that category, A-P.  

MR. BUTTON:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So how do we—give me your best thought process on how to give you more power to get through P-Z.  In other words, or is that never going to happen when you do these bids?  I mean, that would be asking everyone to detail all the way out their proposal which is probably impossible.  

MR. BUTTON:  That may be impossible.  It may be impossible to ask some of the subcontractors to determine at the time of contract who are they going to have in that P-Z area when that contract doesn’t even come into play or that subcontract doesn’t come into play until a year down the road.

What I am looking into doing, however, is incorporating language into the generals’ contract that requires them to continually record each and every subcontractor that’s brought onto the job. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, that’s good, but I think that, it gets us the reporting necessary to see how we’re doing from P-Z.  But, I guess, again, the point of the hearing is to figure out through the legislation passed or whatever effort.  I mean, there’s been lots of efforts since Senator Dills.  How does in the early process, the A-P process early on, how does the contractor gain an advantage over another contractor when a bid is very close?  Let’s say within, you know, $25,000?  I mean, but yet the person that has a higher bid at 25,000 really does know that P-Z’s coming, but they can’t really say that and let you know that, because they haven’t yet outlined it.  And so it never gets captured.  So you might hire the less expensive firm who can provide the job, but that firm may not have ever gotten to P-Z in terms of DVBE.  I mean, is there a way to, in essence, give them some sort of—well, I mean, I just, I don’t know how—

MR. BUTTON:  Well, in a designed bid build contract, we’re required to take the lowest bidder.  Now, if you look at some of the design build contracts we’ve completed, we have a much higher level of achievement.  And that’s because we incorporate into the contract a process by which we are able to qualify the, and rank the general contractor out front relative to his plan of action in incorporating DVBE into the contract.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about—let me ask another way.  When we—I think we had an earthquake or two once.  And there was a, some firm that we hired and said, if you got it done earlier we’ll actually give you an incentive.  I mean, to capture the P-Z folks that become down late later in the process, I mean, are we able to say at the end of the day if you use a DVBE firm that we didn’t capture when you got the contract that we're going to actually give you some, if you will, some benefit from that after the project is completed if you can show us P-Z that you actually did use a DVBE so that the efforts really are there.  Is that a possibility?  I mean, we do it with freeways.  I mean, we hire someone, say we want it done by this date.  But, if you get it done seven months early, you receive this particular bonus.  I mean, I think the same for DVBE—I’m not sure why we wouldn’t do that for . . .

MR. BUTTON:  I think there have been, you know, a number of discussions, and again, as I mentioned earlier, I’m a bit late coming into this dialogue.  Many of these discussions have preceded me, but certainly that was one discussion that was, you know, thrown out on the table early on which is how do we find ways of incenting (sic) participation and I think that exact example which was the, you know, construction of a freeway in Los Angeles where the vendor was paid sooner rather than later.  Again, thinking, you know, a bit outside the box here and I'm not certain we have the statutory authority to do so, but quite possibly as you’re looking forward as to how to deal with this in the future, there may be some option which would be to require a participation level and at the back end of the contract measure that.  And then, you know, there could be an incentive or a disincentive depending on how you structure it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’m just wondering that out loud and I see Jamie Khan and some of the developers nodding their head.  I’m going, maybe I’m saying the wrong thing.  I mean, but I mean, let me flesh this out for a moment, though, but maybe, and Jamie’s going to come up in a little bit.  But, I think it gets around the issue of our legislation that gave a thought that by, that the lowest bidder actually wouldn’t win.  In other words, because of the incentive points or what not, it actually cost the state more at the front end, because we would hire a firm that didn’t necessarily have the lowest bid, but would have DVBE participation.  I’m wondering if the lowest bid wins, regardless, and yet the sub-subs, P-Z ultimately transpire.  So that lowest bid who won, regardless of the DVBE participation at the front end, actually gets an incentive back, because they say, okay look, if you want to even do better on this project, we hire the DVBEs down the line and we get something back.  And it gets us out of the not the lowest bid didn’t win.  It was the firm that had DVBE incentives that won and it cost the state more, so why don’t we, why wouldn’t we just incentivize the lowest bidder at the back end to give, incentivize them to use DVBEs at a higher lever.  I’m just trying to kind of figure how all of that . . .

MR. BUSH:  Well, again, thinking outside the box, so to speak, it would most likely require some level of participation where today it is low bid and it does require a good faith effort, but it would require some level of participation of the contractor presumably would comply with during the term of the contract.  And ultimately the P-Z as we suggest, by the time you hit Z, you have reached that level of participation otherwise there would be the incentive or disincentive would come into play.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay, let’s see if I have any more questions.  The DVBE utilization plan—what ultimately is that?

MS. HAMILTON:  The DVBE utilization plan is a program where a DVB can apply to be part of a, put their information forward and then it’s a utilization plan for them.  It’s not used very often.  In fact, we have no one using that plan for three years.  I don’t know much more about it, because it hasn’t been used for the last three years.  We’ve had,several years ago we had some disabled veteran businesses that applied for that, but it’s expired since then, so it’s not a program that’s used very much right now.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so is it, so you’re saying it’s just not—wouldn’t something replace it?

MS. HAMILTON:  Nothing replaced it.  It’s still out there as an opportunity to be used for a program, but there isn’t much activity in that area right now.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  When we say when it’s used, are we using how much money is going to the program that we don’t use?

MS. HAMILTON:  My understanding at this point and I’ll verify it and get back to you that it’s rally not being used and there’s no money going to it.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No money going to it.  Okay, because I was hoping to find money for your web program out of this.  So I guess that’s not a possibility.  And then if you could, the, kind of the interesting thing that I’m interested in, the specific guidelines that you mentioned, SB 115.  You said if things were submitted, Thursday?
MR. BUSH:  That is correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what was the magic day of Thursday?  Why Thursday?  I know I had a press conference Thursday, but why Thursday?

MR. BUSH:  Because your press conference, of course.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, at least burn off full honesty here.

MR. BUSH:  Actually I had hoped to have had the amount.  My goal was to have them ___ Monday, but it just happened to be coincidental.  It was nothing magic about the day.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We picked the right day, then.

MS. HAMILTON:  But, if I could say something about that, the process, SB 115 regulation process really took longer than we expected.  We had attempted to roll out the regulation to the Office of Administrative Law earlier.  We got a lot of feedback from the communities, so we took it back.  We listened to many, many days of feedback from both internal and externally.  And we kept hearing that the people wanted two parts of that.  And one was to keep the program simple and keep it flexible.  And maybe it’s a look at it as a requirement and not a tool.  So the SB 115 regulation that did go forward allows a department director to look at the, their procurement in total and determine what procurement they want to apply 115 to.  So in a way, you know, we did listen to people.  We did keep it flexible.  And then we kept the percentage flexible, as well.  If a particular director knows they have X amount of projects and in order to get the participation level they want, they can choose the project and they can choose the percentage, I believe it’s from one to three percent.  One to five percent.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is the goal, then, to reach some average of three percent at the end of the day, though, given that range?

MR. BUSH:  Ultimately, the goal is to try and achieve a three percent participation rate across the board and this really is a tool for departments to use.  And in some cases we have departments that are exceeding three percent, and so they may choose not to use a tool.  In other cases we have departments that are less than one percent and ideally, they would use a tool at a higher level in order to achieve a greater level of participation.  Again, as Ms. Hamilton said, it is flexible.  It does allow a department to use it in a number of ways.  One of the biggest issues that we have here clearly is how to implement a program like that and not have it cost, you know, a significant dollar amount.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me just ask, are we then—you concerned me just a bit with a statement within.  Are we saying to some departments, you’re doing so well that you don’t need, you know, use any of these tools, because, in essence you’ve exceeded three percent.  Let’s say if the department’s doing eight percent.  So the department says, wow, we’re at eight percent without this incentive and we figure that we’ll continue to go on at eight percent without incentives, so I don’t see any need to use it.  That’s fine.  I’m just trying to understand the policy.  

And for the other departments that aren’t doing as well, they are, in essence, are—I guess for me I’m saying if we could, if some department could take eight percent in doing well to 16, that’s okay for me.  I think that’s the goal, because maybe there’s more they can do with the incentive.  And by that I just get worried that maybe departments measuring themselves as departments.  So maybe if I got the Governor’s cabinet and I said okay, Ms. Rosario, let’s come in and—I just don’t want to talk to DGS now.  I want to know on average how did everyone do under every department you oversee, is it three percent?  And I bet she’d be just kicking herself saying, well, why didn’t we take that one department that was doing eight to 25, because that would have made my numbers look a lot better.  But more importantly, it would have given more DVBE firms greater opportunity from the eight to 25.  I mean, is that the way should—are we capping?  Is there an incentive cap?
MR. BUSH:  No, again, we share your desire and direction not only with respect to disabled veterans, but with respect to small businesses.  Because, you know, again, I think many of us have said before, you know, small business and disabled veterans are the engine of California’s economy being somewhere, you know, north of 90-something percent of all business done.  With that said, this is a tool ideally departments have not achieved a three percent goal would use this tool more aggressively, but certainly departments that, you know, are, as you said, eight percent ideally going to 10 or 12 percent.  I personally been out with Secretary Morin and met with various department directors with respect to their participation goals.  And since you brought up the Secretary, she is very committed to achieving this goal and has personally been out and visited with agency secretaries and department directors who are at least, you know, not meeting today’s goal.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I’ve heard that.  She’s actually met with every single department and said why aren’t you meeting it and why . . .

MR. BUSH:  Yes, she has been out with each of the agency secretaries and taken it to cabinet meetings and said this is where we will be.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  She’s, I mean, from my viewpoint, she’s done a pretty good job of doing that.  I think it’s a new one.  

MR. BUSH:  I would second that, since she’s my boss.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  ___ possibly _____ last administration in terms of making sure that the least the departments understood that this was a priority, so I do want to make sure that that’s recognized.

One last question I have and then we’ll, then Senator Wyland may have some closing question for this panel, but, you’ve given us to the Office of Administrative Law, correct?

MS. HAMILTON:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now what happens now?  What’s the process?

MR. BUSH:  The next process is a, it’ll be filed.  There’ll be a 45-day hearing period and we should hear from all sides with respect to this issue.  We’ll hold a hearing.  I think our hearing is May 30th.  I think that’s the date.  Don’t hold me to it, but it’s, you know, in that neighborhood.  We will then take those comments and go back and look at any modifications or changes that we may need to make to the regulation itself before we submit it for final filing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Senator Wyland, any more questions?  Thank you so much.  Very enlightening. 

MR. BUSH:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Really appreciate it.  And we’ll come see you on maybe some budgetary items on the outreach issue that Senator Wyland and I—maybe we can get some joint participation from both houses on that as the budget moves forward.  I don’t think that’s a real costly item, but I think it could have a huge impact.  Okay, thank you. Senator Wyland?

SENATOR WYLAND:  Yeah, and I think as we sort of developed in that line of questioning, Senator Florez, is the identifying the universe, who is there and what their actual capacities are, because that’s what a builder is going to look at and somehow determining why, because if you and I were in a business and we had some special incentives, we’d be knocking on every door.  So somehow we need to figure out what, hopefully we learn what it is where, that we can then enhance.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  I agree with that completely.  Okay.  Department of Veterans Affairs.  And number one, thank you for coming today and as been mentioned by Senator Wyland, there obviously more hearings in the future given the chairmanship of the Veterans Affairs.  But, we’d like to hear from you.  You can introduce yourself for the record and then we’ll take a few questions.
MR. J. P. TREMBLAY:  Okay, my name is J.P. Tremblay.  I’m the deputy secretary of the California Department of Veterans Affairs.  And with me I have Jack Kirwan who is our outgoing chief of Veterans Services and is being promoted to chief of our Administrative Services Division.  And on my other side I have Dr. Robert Johnson who is our Capital Development Construction director for the homes.  He’s the one that’s been primarily working on the GLAVC projects and will continuing to work on the Fresno and Redding homes as they progress.
Just a brief opening statement and then I’ll turn it over to Mr. Kirwan and Dr. Johnson.  We continue to work with DGS to build participation of DVBEs within the projects that we have in West Los Angeles and Lancaster, Ventura, and the other two, Redding and Fresno.  And I want to reiterate what DGS did point out, that just because the bids have been tabulated, we’ve turned in those numbers to the Department of Veterans Affairs on the federal level does not mean that we’re finished with our outreach efforts.  We will continue to work with DGS and the DVBE alliances to make sure that we get as large a participation in those projects as we possibly can.  This is something that is very important to this Administration and to this department.  The Secretary has made it one of his primary goals to increase participation DVBEs throughout the Department.  He has regular meetings with our managers and with the homes to check on their status of participation of DVBEs, and we continue to do that.
With that, I’ll turn this over to Mr. Kirwan here and he can talk a little bit about—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And if I could pause you—you all folks are from Sacramento?  Correct?  Could I—we have some folks who are out of town who do need to catch a flight.  And given the fact that G.O. was an hour late in establishing a quorum, almost, I’d like to see if we could have them come up.  If we could get their testimony on the record and call you folks back up.  Is that possible?  Give us a few moments.  And Ms. Khan do you want to come up and—this is Panel 3, the general contractors and we have Wayne Lindholm, vice president, Hensel Phelps Construction Company, and Jamie Khan, Associated General Contractors of California, and others.  I’m sorry about the delay earlier today.  We obviously should have almost been done by now if it had started on time.  I apologize for that.  And if you could just state your name for the record, we’ll take your testimony.
MS. JAMIE KHAN:  Jamie Khan, representing the Associated General Contractors.  And thank you very much for the opportunity to be here today.  We are very supportive of SB 115 and we’ve been working with the Department to implement it.  We have today with us Wayne Lindholm.  He’s the senior vice-president of AGC and also the vice-president of Hensel Phelps.  Hensel Phelps has been involved in a lot of projects here in Sacramento.  They built the East End Project, they built the Department of Education building, the CalPERS building, the Esquire Building, and the Sheraton.  So anyway, I’m going to turn this over to Wayne Lindholm.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you for joining us.

MR. WAYNE LINDHOLM:  No problem.  Wayne Lindhold, Hensel Phelps Construction.  And I think they’re still here, the Department of General Services.  We were one of the bidders on the West L.A. project.  There were only two and we were not low.  Amoroso was low, but a lot of things they were talking about are the things that we as a contractor actually do.  And they set the policies.  They have a certification process.  We’re the ones that implement that and go out and get the bids put together.  Anyway, we can talk about that process a little bit as we go through it.
DVBE, we’ve got, if I look at subcontracting typically we’re at about three percent, three to five percent for subcontracting goals for DVBE.  On small business, we can run as high as we ran on the Ortho project, 49 percent.  CalPERS that we just finished up—it was not tracked there.  Capitol East End, that was also with Department of General Services.  We had three percent DVBE.  We had 25 percent small business.  So these are the goals that we typically see.
We were a little surprised when they upped the ante a little bit to five percent for the West L.A. project.  And certainly not one in 20 contractors are DVBE.  So they’re raising the challenge a little bit.  We actually, when we turned the bid in we did have like one of the gentlemen was talking about, we did have a couple captive subcontractors.  And we turned a bid in and had six percent.  They said that they were at 1.8 percent on West L.A.  And I would agree with Doug Button that by the time the job is finished they will probably be above three.  I don’t know that they’ll be at five, but that’ll increase as they flesh it out and go through the project.  
I’d be a little opposed to seeing some type of a tail end incentive put on the job, especially at this point in time, because I actually spent a few bucks.  Not the delta.  There was a couple million dollar delta in it, but I spent a half a million dollars getting to that six percent and not in, by not taking the low bid.  And so you come along and you say, okay, well, we’ll give you a couple million bucks or we’ll give you a million bucks on this job.  It’s only half a percent.  I mean it’s $180 million.  We’ll give you a half a million dollars or a million dollars to get the three percent at the end.  That wouldn’t quite be fair, because I spent half a million dollars and had six percent to begin with.
So, when you start working the dollars into it, I think Department of General Services is doing what we need.  They have a certification program, so we can identify who the people are.  There was a question asked earlier, how do you get the word out to the people, and that’s our job.  We solicit on a bid like that, it was a pretty good sized bid, obviously.  We solicit probably 2,000 subcontractors suppliers for a job of that size.  And we’ll get bids from 400, 500 firms as we go through it.  And so it’s a pretty major undertaking.  
So what we do is we take those lists that they’ve developed, and if we don’t already have those names on our solicitation list and if done by both email and a little card saying, hey, we’re bidding it.  We’d like you to participate.  Here’s what we’re going to need.  Here’s the value of the work we think it’s going to be.  That’s how we sent that out so that everybody knows that we’re bidding and taking bids and we excite the community with it and attend their programs, their outreach programs.  We attend those.  We have, we hold our own program, the AGC actually holds programs to help people.  The Stemple program where were actually mentor small business enterprises and minority business enterprises and we’ve been involved in that.  So a lot of those things we can and do as general contractors.
There are a couple others that we talked about just that I think can go further, and I don’t know, it takes money to do it, but you take the Department of General Services and you have business training for these people that are coming back from Iraq and Afghanistan.  I mean, you know, what do they know—if they grew up in the business, it’s one thing, but if they didn’t, how do they get the training?  How do they understand what it takes to get a contractors’ license?  What it takes to bond work and our policy is to bond anybody over $50,000 on a job.  You have to manage the risk when you put together these projects.

I have a contract that’s $2 million with a DVBE firm and I pay the firm a million dollars and they go broke when they’re halfway through that, it doesn’t do them any good and it’ll probably cost me another two million or three million instead of the original two million to get the job finished.  So we’re looking at bonding requirements, we’re looking at their capabilities.  

Size of project makes a huge difference.  When you get to the $180 million, the smallest subcontractors are typically half million, five million bucks.  Or you could take a job that’s three million and set it aside and say, we just want this thing done entirely and I think CalTrans does that.  Olivia will talk about that in a little bit.  They just say, hey, here’s a $3 million job.  It’s too small for the Hensel Phelps to look at.  We’re just going to get awarded to a DVBE firm and all of a sudden you can up your percentages across all the work you’re doing just by doing, we call them set asides.  Set aside for DVBE and they could handle that size of a project.  When you get into the larger jobs, I mean, we can’t even keep small business firms small very long when they do three or four of these things in a row.  They don’t even qualify for small business anymore.  I mean, they’re out of it.  They can’t stay under the $17 million criteria, so. . .

Bid solicitation size, location of the project makes a difference.  They talked about that.  West L.A.—we had fairly good luck, but we also had a couple captive people that obviously Amoroso didn’t have.  Certification—that’s a key issue for us is to make sure they have a certification process and that it’s standard.  The federal government on SB 8 uses self certification process.  Well, doesn’t always, it may not be the best, but at least it’s something.  It gives us something to go through.

So I guess the thing that we want to do is put these programs in place and work with them.  We’ve been successful working with them.  We’ve done a lot of work with DGS and have been successful with DGS without distorting the bid pricing process itself.  And that’s what we’re concerned about, because then I’d start raising my hand and go, oh I had the six percent.  You weren’t a legitimate low bidder and I’d raise my hand and you know, play that game.  And we just, we don’t want to go there if we can help it. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great comments.  Thank you.  Yes.

MR. SAM HASSOUN:  Good morning.  My name’s Sam Hassoun.  I’m the director of engineering for the Associated General Contractors.  And Wayne touched on the bidding process and what contractors do.  What I’d like to share with you actually is the AGC, in particular, is actually looking for DVBEs.  And I think the comment was made earlier it’s all about relationships and it’s all about business.  AGC’s looking to expand the pool of their members, frankly.  That’s the business that they’re in.  And they’re looking for reliable subs that are looking for reliable small business and DVBEs.  We understand how that operates.  
You mentioned projects in Ventura and the success of that.  That was a relationship based business.  And what you will see is what we’re looking for is expansion of that pool, 232 certified construction DVBEs with the kind of work we that we have coming up, especially the highway and the bond measures that we have coming up.  It is definitely not big enough, especially when we’re looking now at specialty work.  And I think you alluded earlier to the fact that if you have freeway construction or some kind of a transportation project, they’re looking for striping contractors, fence contractors and others that DVBEs would be excellent at.  And those are the types that we’re looking for.  
But the proper certification that Wayne alluded to, an expansion of that pool geographically instead of just one set of ___ across the board is, take the CalTrans model.  We’ve been working with CalTrans for so many years and CalTrans have exceeded, actually, the 30 percent goal overall as a department.  Seeing what the Department of Corrections without altering the bid process.  We’re looking to see how we can possibly actually duplicate that success with the other departments who have not been able to meet those goals.  And do learn from other departments that have done it well.  
What we’re looking for is the money could be probably well spent in technical assistance for the DVBEs, because the type of work that they will be involved in is highly technical in nature.  The bonding issue is critical and for any contractor to assume a risk, they’re looking for those viable subs and frankly, primes, as well.  So AGC as a whole is eagerly seeking those veterans to come into the marketplace, because frankly, we don’t have enough people to do the work and we are definitely seeking those reliable DVBEs.  I’ll turn it over to Olivia.

MS. OLIVIA FONSECA:  Okay, thank you, Sam.  Yes, I’m Olivia Fonseca, deputy director, Office of Civil Rights for CalTrans.  In my program I also have this small business, disabled veteran, and the disadvantaged business program which is the federal side of the program.  But, I’ll address the disabled veteran.  I am glad to announce that CalTrans for the last five years has met and exceeded the DVBE goal.  Last year we barely made it, but we did meet it anyway.  We had that $1.3 billion South Anchor Suspension project in San Francisco that really brought our numbers down, but without it, we would have been over six percent last year.  So very good news.  And also in the news is that we don’t stop at three percent.  Our director Will Kempton is committed to achieve a goal that doesn’t stop at once we reach that three percent number.  

So how is it that CalTrans has been so successful all these years?  I have to say based on the leadership in our department that a director down to the district directors at each level have been committed to achieving the goals that are set forth and upon us.  What that also means is that we have to partner, as I am sitting here with this panel, the Associated General Contractors.  We partner with our contractors, professional services, as well, who are the players that obtain the larger size of the projects, and let them know that we are serious.  We have denied contracts and we have made it very clear to the contractors that you make every effort to meet the three percent or you ____ or if you don’t do either, you will be denied the contract.  And we have witnesses here that will say that happens.  

But, another piece that we do which is very key to our success is ensuring every CalTrans official who has a CalCard—I think you are aware what the Cal Card is—is that they seek small businesses and DVBEs so that they have that opportunity to buy direct from the disabled veterans.  We also encourage our district staff to seek out small and disabled veterans when we have projects under 131,000, because we can make phone calls to those three, two, three people.  Three businesses and we make sure that they are disabled, they are small business, and that they obtain the bids.  

Emergency contracts, same thing.  Our director ensures that we go out and seek out the small businesses and the disabled veterans to do that work.  So that’s our successes.  It goes, it starts from the top and it trickles down to our district level.  Any CalCard holder and we have thousands of them who purchase daily office supplies, obviously a key area that our CalCard purchases.  But, everything that you can imagine that we can use using the three bid process for contracts under 131, the CalCard process as well.  We do projects, specific outreach has been mentioned by General Services in bringing the partners together from the primes, be it construction, be it professional services, whatever service that we are looking for we do bring the two parties together.  
I think our success, too, is that the General Services list for certification has a lot of suppliers and services, truckers, which we use.  And that is a very good area for our prime contractors to contract with, those supplies in those trucking services that are needed to build and maintain our roads.
SENATOR WYLAND:  Can I ask one question?  What, I don’t know what a CalCard is.  Can you . . ?

MS. FONSECA:  It’s, California Credit Card.  And it’s just a term that is used.  And it’s a Visa card that we have a limit of up to $5,000 per purchase.  And Cal ____ has probably about 3,000 employees who have this card.  And you use it just like a regular Visa card that you buy materials and some services.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  They give it to second year senators.

(LAUGHTER) 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Next term you’ll know what that is.

SENATOR WYLAND:  I’m so looking forward.  If I may just to start out, because you mentioned something about truckers.

MS. FONSECA:  Yes.

SENATOR WYLAND:  And I think you mentioned something about a list, because one of the things that I keep coming back to is I guess first is the existing pool.  And we’ve already heard from AGC and from people actually doing contracting which I think is a great, you know, this is wonderful help, because we’re hearing from people actually doing this in terms of how can we make this most effective.  But, I keep coming back to the pool.  You know, really identifying who is there.  
Secondly, secondary to that is how do you make that bigger?  Which is another issue.  And you also see as you, in your testimony you mentioned one big project and that’s sometimes where the percentage can mess you up, because you can have one very big project which simply isn’t, you’re simply not going to be able to do it, because of the nature of that project.  And I think you said absent that project, you would have been at six percent.

So, how do we, and maybe let me first ask of Hensel Phelps do you know who these folks are?  If you’re bidding a project, do you know who those qualified DVBE bidders are?

MR. LINDHOLM:  On the job we just bid for DGS we discovered probably another half a dozen firms when we started digging.  We did know who some of them are.  We have a list and have a data base and we went through that.  But, we added another six or seven that kind of surprised us, and then we started putting the lines together and ended up with that six percent.  But, you know, what would be interesting and CalTrans I’m sure has a list and you’ve heard DGS say they have a list of 230.  It would be neat to be able to get all those lists in one place.  
SENATOR WYLAND:  And that’s my point.  If I’m a contractor, if I’m a builder, one of the first things I’m going to want to see and I’m putting this bid together is, you know, it’s just like with supplier.  You want to know and over time you develop suppliers or subs that you rely on.  You want to know who’s out there in that universe.  And I think one thing that I’ve already determined from this is we need some mechanism to just look at the existing pool and not just names, but so you know really something about them.  Something about their history, something about bonding capacity, because you mentioned if it’s over 50,000 you’re going to get a bond.  And that seems to me to be one way to get this, you know—

MS. FONSECA:  Can I comment about the pool?

SENATOR WYLAND:  Please.

MS. FONSECA:  The data that DGS presented are primarily contractors that have an A or B license.  And so in our industry we’re looking for contractors that are in C licenses and truckers and suppliers and they wouldn’t be in that 292 data number that DGS gave.  So there’s a greater, and when you separate the license requirements—

SENATOR WYLAND:  Well, wouldn’t it be great if whatever the category were and I’m someone who wants to contract and do business with the state.  If I could go almost to a website and I could simply get on an updated basis the people, who they are, what their status is, whether it’s A, B, C, whatever the license, whatever the category is I know I would think it for me it would make it a lot easier and help us keep these goals up.
Separately, I think, and you mentioned this, is trying to encourage more people to enter the business which is a, that’s a good full hearing in and of itself.  But, in terms of trying to make the pool available, it would be great.  And that to me is something that may be there’s a way to get the state, various agencies, Senator Florez, to actually assemble it and get the information and spend some money to do that.

MS. FONSECA:  You could probably touch what they call it, chancellor’s office, community colleges small business development centers that are stationed all over the state and do recruitment efforts through their channels which is their services are business development, business creation, business capacity building.
SENATOR WYLAND:  Yeah, I think recruitment, the issue of recruitment and getting people to start businesses which I wholeheartedly believe in.  I think it’s a great thing.  That’s a big issue in and of itself.  And business I was in, most of the business owners came up in the trade and then they opened their own businesses.  But, I’m just thinking in terms of, if I were Hensel Phelps or a smaller company, I’d just want to know who’s out there and that’s immediately who I would go to to try to put together my bid.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I think we’re all speaking on the same page here.  So you’re in agreement with that.

MR. HASSOUN:  We're in agreement, definitely, expanding the pool or at least having that reliable pool available, and hopefully expand it ___.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what is the concern from your association on the SB 115?  The way it’s going to be implemented?  It’s been sent to the Office of Administrative Law so what can we expect to hear from your association as this public period begins?

MS. KHAN:  Part of our concern is the—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well are you for it or against it?  Let’s start there.

MS. KHAN:  We’re for SB 115.  Totally for SB 115.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  It’s the way it’s implemented?

MS. KHAN:  Yeah, the way the Department has proposed to implement it is somewhat concerning.  You know, our concern is that it not turn into a preference program.  You know, that the emphasis be placed on trying to develop more, like you said, a data base information so we can find them so we can access the information and what they’re capable of doing.  Maybe use some more partnering.  Partnering just really make a big difference.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  ____ it does.  But, doesn’t that take us back to good faith?  I mean, aren’t we just getting back to where everybody says found the website, I copied the emails, I sent out an email, and I did everything I could.  I mean, that was the purpose of  115, and so I mean, I think as we start to think about other incentive programs, I mean, tell me a better system beyond good faith that you guys support.

MS. KHAN:  We are very supportive of the CalTrans model.  You know, we think that is there is a department that’s meeting or exceeding the goal and that’s the type of program that we ought to be using, and the model that we ought to be using in other departments, as well, just to see if, you know, what they’re doing at CalTrans, if that can be replicated, that ought to be replicated.  And they will be, you know, successful, is what we believe.
MR. HASSOUN:  Without so much opening the low bid structure that you have, because you’re looking, really, for a competitive edge for the contractor to go in.  And to give them the incentive for utilization of the DVBE as you suggested is probably the way to go and that’s the CalTrans model, as opposed to altering, you know, going to the second lowest and going in because of that incentive.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   So tell me what you like about the CalTrans model again, so I can understand that.

MR. HASSOUN:  A., it works.  B.-- 

MS. KHAN:  B., it doesn’t alter the bidding process.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, it works because you have a lot of money to spend, too, is that correct?

MS. FONSECA:  Oh, yes, we do.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And let’s just call it what it is.  I mean, where it doesn’t work is in our prisons, who has I think about as much money as you have to spend, correct?  Somewhere close?

MS. FONSECA:   I don’t know what their budget is.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, and they’re less than like, according to the Governor’s office, you know, Corrections is 1.83.  So, I mean, maybe we need to send you to Corrections for a bit.

(LAUGHTER)
MS. FONSECA:  Been there, done that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, I guess my question is that that’s a real question what works at CalTrans that you like that may not be working in the rest of the departments for example, Corrections, that’s what I’m just trying to figure out.  What is it that, you know—

MS. FONSECA:  Let me see if I can also put it in perspective for them.  Is we look at the goal as a departmental.  As an overall goal that we all have to achieve.   And so as I shared that we consider definitely on our CalCard purchases and our service contracts that are under 25,000 or 131,000 is to seek out the DVBE.  So that’s a good portion of our contracts.
We also look at those over 131,000 where if it’s, let’s say it’s between 750 down that we will do a focus recruitment of small and disabled veterans to fit that project and the message to the industry is the contractors will know that those are targeted for the smaller businesses.  And they tend to stay away from bidding those.  So it’s an industry partnering and policing of themselves and understanding what we’re achieving or trying to achieve.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, in essence, aren’t you doing the work for the business applying?  So, in other words, you mentioned earlier that, you know, they’ll say, well, we know there’s some DVBE participants.  We don’t know anyone.  So can you tell us?  And it sounds as though you’re saying, yes, we can tell you.  Here are three, four, five firms.  That doesn’t seem to translate to other agencies that type of—because I think as Senator Wyland said, because you have a data base.  I mean, you’ve got a huge advantage over—

MS. CONSECA:  It’s the same one DGS has, though.  Because that’s the only way we can take credit _______--

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright, so then we have to get that data base better, because, so I mean, if I were to bring in Department of Corrections to ask the question, what data base you use, they would probably say, what?  I mean, what would be different—they have $900 million worth of contracts out.  You folks give a little over two billion, still almost half.  But, I mean, the participation rate is different.  They gave, you gave out, 2,400 contracts to DVBEs.  Corrections gave out 3,200.  But, yet the participation was small.  In other words, I guess I’m just trying to figure out ultimately what—you seem to have a real handle on your data, who they are, you know, right.

MS. FONSECA:  Yeah, we do have a handle, because we do access it.  We do share it with our district offices.  We do meet with our small business, what we call small business disabled veteran liaisons.  We do provide them with tools, seek out, we do, you know, send them messages constantly.  I think it’s not just once a year, it’s not just—when we go to DGS it’s a constant message that we deliver to all employees.  

MR. HASSOUN:  And from the contractors spent at that point, we know the goal of that specific project going in and CalTrans sets the goal based on the location of the project and the availability of the DVBEs, so it’s not across the board, even though it’s an overall department goal.  But, it’s project specific and that helps the contractor, also, seek out—
MS. FONSECA:  Which means on a, if it’s so specialized, we may have a zero goal ___ so specialized.  But, in another area of Southern California, we may have a five or maybe a higher goal.  The one project in San Francisco it was so specialized.  We had a one percent we met.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I gotcha.  Just the last question I have.  Is this 115 is ultimately implemented between a one and five percent and the way that they’re going, are you folks going to go to court?

MR. HASSOUN:  I don’t know that the decision has been ___, because like Jamie suggested, we support the 115.  And it’s definitely—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, if it’s the version that you don’t like, are you going to court, is going to be my question.

MR. HASSOUN:  I don’t know if that decision’s been ____.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you considering it?  No?

MS. CONSECA:  No, we’re not.  Absolutely not.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright.  Just want to make sure.  Our Veteran chair is here, so I just want to make sure he heard it.  So, I mean, I’m just wondering, because obviously if that happens, it’ll resonate back up and it’ll probably end up in some discussion in Veterans Affairs.  So I’m just wondering where you’re at.

The only reason I ask is I read the website.  Your website has some references to that and it’s a little bit concerning.  

MS. FONSECA:  And as a state department, we support the language with the flexibility allowing the state department director to decide how to apply the incentive.  And the other piece is ensuring that the contract language indicated the low bidder already meets the goal, then you don’t need to a ___ incentive.  The incentive should be applied only when none of the bidders have met the goal.  And then you don’t have that piece.  
SENATOR WYLAND:  I’d just like to make a final comment about this.  I think CalTrans, you’ve done a really good job at sort of making this a practical.  And we’ve heard many elements of it.  And it does, obviously, vary by there are some regions or some jobs where it may be so extremely difficult, it’s simply not going to happen.  But in other cases, you have that data base and I think one of the things that I’ve concluded from this is we really do need, and maybe what you were doing at CalTrans is the model to start from, way so that you can find people.  Because if I’m Hensel Phelps or if I’m bidding a contractor on this, it kind of, it’s one thing to say you need to incorporate in your bid.  It’s something else to say, well, you need to find these people.  It’d sure be nice since they are certified anyway, they’re going through a state process anyway, perhaps in combination with the certification process, we can get them into that database that can be shared across the system with the appropriate characteristics, maybe updated, so that we can go down the goal that you had in 115 and really make this a greater reality and a practical way of doing so.
MS. KHAN:  The only thing I would say, though, if the DGS proposed language goes forward and it does require a preference program, you know, that might be a problem for, bidders, you know, the second bidder who is unhappy with, the, you know, the fact that they did not get the, or the lowest bidder is unhappy because the second bidder got the award, there may be some concerns about that.  There’s always challenges, you know, to those types of things.  And if that goes forward, that might be a concern.
SENATOR WYLAND:  And I think whatever the game rules are, that it be determined through the public policy process.  Whatever those are, it just needs to be fair so everyone has access.  Now I think that’s what you’re saying.  It’s not fair if there—whatever the public process decides, it needs to be such that any bidder can meet it fairly with the same amount of information and on the same basis, I think. 

MR. LINDHOLM:  When we had minority goals, we used to keep the courts fairly busy with whether you’re low bidder or high bidder and how it would fit and they didn’t award to the low bidder and so, it does open up a can of worms that’s just like crazy.  But, yet you can look at what CalTrans is doing and I agree with Dave when he says they’re going to get the three percent on West L.A.  It’s just going to take some focus and put it on.  And we have the tools in place and we’ve talked about some of the things that we can do to assist these contractors.  I think the tools are in place to do it without messing with the bid process and landing people back in courts.  And then you start—I mean, people start doing things like pass throughs.  And I mean, it’s even identified in your bill.  Okay, can’t do it—I mean, but there’s all different variations of that.  And so it starts breaking down and that’s where we used to keep the courts busy.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay, well, I was hoping to adjourn you when you said you weren’t going to go to court, but I failed in that.

(LAUGHTER) 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I kind of hear it’s an open opportunity, so we’ll let policy, I think Senator Wyland said it best.  The policy on this should be ultimately dictated here, though, hopefully, not by a judge.  It’s just my own preference.  So let’s continue to have talks on that bid process.  Thank you all.  Thank you very much.  

Okay, let’s go back to our panel two which is Department of Veterans Affairs, and then we’ll hit our panel four which is DBVE Alliance and our veterans.  And then we will wrap up.  Senator Wyland and I both have committees, I know, later in the afternoon.  So let’s go ahead.  Now you folks ended with—we could ask you questions.
UNIDENTIFIED:  Right, well, basically introduced ourselves and I was turning over to Mr. Kirwan who can talk a little bit about what our Department has been doing to promote DVBE.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  

MR. JACK KIRWAN:  Thank you very much, Senator.  Jack Kirwan, chief ____ division and chief of administrative services.  What I wanted to do is try to go back and answer some of the questions that were raised earlier to try to clarify some of the activities that are ongoing, so yet the committee can have a better understanding of the program.  In the first and foremost is the concern with the 232 construction related DVBEs and why we would not have seen 232 of those folks at the outreach meetings, or even half of them ____ because many of them are down in the L.A. area.  

What the Department has used as a means for communication is our DVBE Advisory Council.  It’s a very active council made up of leaders of networks of DVBEs throughout the state.  And this is our forum for having the community having DGS, CDVA as the state California DVBE advocate, and to have the agency advocates all in one place so that we can have a good communication.  We used that council to do the two-way communication, so not only were we advising the council all throughout the months before this project came with monthly updates as to where we were, what the timeline was looking, when we were expecting RFPs to hit the street, but we also used them to foster the communication to the community.  As a matter of fact, we worked closely with the San Diego elite DVBE network who went out and pulled together what was called the consortium.  They went out and polled many of the DVBE construction ties, plus many of the service and commodities DVBE firms just like you heard Department of Transportation allude to earlier.  And they provided each one of these outreaches and each one of the mandatory walk throughs a long list of DVBE firms that had indicated, positively indicated that they were interested in participating in the project.  

So though you may have only heard 17, 20, 10 folks from the DVBE community at each one of those outreach events, they were actually represented many more and Mr. Mulz, I believe, is on the next panel and he may be able to address that in greater detail. 

The other item I wanted to address is what is, you know, how do folks reach out and find a DVBE?  If I just want to go out and buy carpeting to recarpet my new office, how do I go out and find a DVBE?  There is the DGS website and it does include key words, a series of identification codes for the type of business so you can search that DGS website online.  It’s accessible to everybody.  You know, there’s some issues with the search engine on it and we’re working on improving that, but it’s also mirrored over on the California DVBE Alliance website and they’re actually used a DVBE program to make a much more robust search engine.  So, it’s actually available, all 891 DVBEs are listed and you can identify not only where they work, by zip code, by area, but by key words that they put in.  So there is some web based resources out there.  And in addition—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is this as large as CalTrans?

MR. KIRWAN:  It’s, as Olivia was pointing out, it is exactly the same, because she cannot use a, she cannot count a contractor, subcontractor or otherwise in her participation rate unless it’s also on the DGS website as a certified DVBE.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how user friendly is this?  Sounded like--

MR. KIRWAN:  The one on the DGS’s, you know, there’s a little learning curve on using that, but certainly the one that’s mirrored on the DVBE Alliance which has exactly the same list of DVBE certified firms is much easier from a user’s perspective to find what you’re looking for.  And DGS and the Alliance are already talking about how to transfer that knowledge, that ease of search over.  

The other item is that DGS alluded to that every RFP, whether it’s construction or otherwise, ends up on their contract register.  And as the committee alluded to, these DVBEs are businesses.  They have to go out and they have to market and they have to find their business.  And one way to do that is every DVBE can put a free advertisement attached to every RFP.  So when our free RFPs for the GLAVC project came out, an interested DVBE could go on there, here’s what I’d do, here’s my bonding capacity, give a whole little sales pitch right there for free.  Other businesses, there’s a charge for it.  Just want to make sure I—and as Mr.--
SENATOR FLOREZ:  How many firms did that, what you just mentioned?

MR. KIRWAN:  On ___ the advertisements.  The last time I checked just before—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  More than—

MR. KIRWAN:  I’d say maybe five.  There were not a lot.  That’s an education.  The use, you know, we acknowledge that there’s an education issue in the, you know, we are trying to undertake with the DVBE community to make sure that they use that tool, as well as making sure that the key words are appropriate for the type of business they’re in.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  Let’s call in Google.  

MR. KIRWAN:  I believe that’s the underlying search engine for the Alliance’s mirror of that data base.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not the state’s, though.

MR. KIRWAN:  That is not what the states at this point.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Okay.

MR. KIRWAN:  In the business utilization program that DGS alluded to is similar to the model that Department of Transportation was talking about.  It’s that utilization plan, a firm will make a commitment that says, well, maybe I don’t have my participation on this particular contract, but I will make a commitment to having more participation so that you have an average at three percent in all my other contracts with the state.  And that tends to, my sense is the reason that’s not used is because it’s pretty hard commitment, but you don’t know how many state contracts you’re going to get later on, so it’s hard to make that commitment that I’ll have zero on this one and I’ll make it all up on my next one.  So it is not a well-used tool, but you can see from the agency’s perspective that kind of model can be very successful.  No comments, open for questions.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great.  Because all my questions are directed towards you.  No, I’m kidding.  Just a couple questions.  The, what is the goal?  Has the Department met three percent itself?
MR. KIRWAN:  No, sir, although the secretary is going to take a very aggressive effort.  One of the best practices that we recognize and we teach to other agencies is that to be successful there has to be a very sincere and direct executive management—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I understand.  And I guess the question and this is not badgering.  It’s just a question of perception.  I mean, you’re the Department of Veterans Affairs.  We have a three percent goal and you don’t meet it.  And I look at the Governor’s Office and the Governor’s office itself is at seven percent, like one of the highest rates.  So I think politically he recognizes, hey!  I mean, at some point people are going to ask where is the Governor’s office on this, and they’re at seven percent.  And so, you know, you’re the Department of Veterans Affairs which I would assume would be, meet the goal at the minimum, so how do we, from your vantage point, what kind of contractors, DVBE, are you looking for to meet that goal?  It’s more of a specific question.  What ultimately are you looking for?

MR. KIRWAN:  Right now, this year, and we’re on target to exceed the three percent that our current expenditure and participation rates.  And primarily we’re making it up in the same type of model that you just heard from Transportation where we might have a medical services contracts where there are no DVBEs in that type of contract.  We make it up with commodities and other smaller service contracts.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  

MR. KIRWAN:  But, like this GLAVC project does not count in our participation rates ____ DGS ____.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The reason I asked, I once asked the past administration why the Governor’s office hadn’t met the DVBE goals.  And this governor seems to have gotten it, better than the past, so it’s not necessarily a reflection of those parties.  I think it’s really a question of how much of a spotlight we put on this, and every time we do put a spotlight on it, it seems things get better.  So I think there’s some value sometimes in checking in how we're doing.

MR. KIRWAN:  Secretary Johnson participated in the meetings that Secretary Morin, so he got to go out and I’m not sure ____ was the right word, but certainly could relate to the agencies that had not made goal.  It was put on the spot in the same way, so the attention is there. 
MR. TREMBLAY:  The attention is there.  And also if I could add the Secretary is meeting with his managers from the homes in the different divisions to get monthly reports to make sure that they are meeting their goals.  And it’s important that that top down direction in leadership is there and the Secretary’s made that commitment that we will meet and exceed the three percent.  As Mr. Kirwan noted, we will pass that by the end of this year, so . . .

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Wyland, I don’t have any other questions.  If you have.

SENATOR WYLAND:  I do have one and it gets sort of down to the practical part of.  I’ve been thinking sort of in terms of if this were my business.  I think it’d be really helpful rather than speaking about it in general is to know what services you’re using.  Their characteristics, you know, data, their dollar value, number of contracts, things like that, and just the data.  And then where you find it easy and where you find it not easy.  Because I think just sort of piggybacking on the earlier one, it would help us, I think, to identify areas where it may be extremely difficult.  But other areas where it may be much easier.  And you alluded to that when you said, I think you essentially were talking about materials suppliers for certain things.

MR. KIRWAN:  Yes, sir.  The two areas of contracts and we can provide the committee with greater detail, if you’d like.  For the two areas where we find restrictions on the use of DVBEs is in medical contracts.  At our homes we use a lot of professionals to care for the veterans.  There’s not, I’m not familiar with any DVBEs in that type of service, and those are some of our biggest contracts.  
Then the second biggest area is out at the Veterans home in Yountville.  That is the food commodities in which we’re required to use the state contract to do that.  And that this point, there’s no, it’s called an off ramp.  When you go to strategic sourcing contracts, they’re set up by DGS and they’re called mandatory, but if you need to make your DVBE participation in an item that’s in that strategic sourcing contract, there’s often an option that’s called the off ramp where you can go without having to get any further approvals not use the strategic sourcing contract to go use a DVBE or small business.  That’s not currently available in the state’s food contract. 
SENATOR WYLAND:  I just think that data would help us understand better where we are and how to move forward.  Obviously in certain medical contracts it may not be possible, where in others it may be possible to ramp it up even more.  And so that’s sort of practical information I think would be very helpful.

MR. KIRWAN:  We can provide that to the committee.  And that’s where we’re trying to do the balance act this year that when we feel comfortable, we say we’ll be exceed the three percent.  If I could just throw one more item in and that’s in terms of the DVBE program is not an entrepreneur development program, but that’s not to say that we don’t get involved with that.  As a matter of fact, staff are going up to the business, Small Business Development Center up in Butte College near Chico tomorrow in order to make presentations on how to do business with the state.  And this is one of the things where a business to be successful in the DVBE program needs to have a fairly well established business.  You don’t want to start up today, come to the state and rely 100 percent on the state business to be able to do that.  If nothing else, you’ll probably have a cash flow problem.  But—

SENATOR WYLAND:  You said it, because I’ve done business with the state.

MR. KIRWAN:  We are working with the Small Business Development Centers.  You know, we’re working closely with the DVBE Alliance, and the Alliance Academy to make sure that its veterans are coming back, that we are participating in their opportunities in entrepreneurship.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great.  Alright, thank you.  Last but not least of course is our panel four which are the veteran organizations.  Just come on up.  Okay, I think we’ll go three and three and so let’s go ahead and start.  That’s right.  We used to have six chairs here and we’re not sure we can scoot a couple more in, but are we still going to have enough to. . .  Let’s try to bring everyone up.  Yeah, let’s do that.  And let’s move some chairs around and. . .  Okay.
MR. DON GONNEVILLE:  Good afternoon, Senator Florez.  I’m Don Gonneville.  I’m president of the California Disabled Veteran Business Alliance.  To my right is Mr. Ken Schoemake of the Central Valley Network.  To my left, our executive director, Mr. Rich Dryden.  To his left is Mr. Bob Mulz with the San Diego Elite Network and—
MR. WARREN WALSH:  Warren Walsh.

MR. GONNEVILLE:  We’d like to thank you for having us here today, Senator Florez, because as we all know, our efforts have been largely successful thanks to you.  You’ve been very, very helpful in terms of legislation, in terms of helping us do the things that we need to do and we’re very grateful for that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Andy Warrenbrock behind you, too.  That’s the ___.

MR. GONNEVILLE:  Is Andy here?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  From my district.

MR. GONNEVILLE:  Andy’s a treasurer of our organization and he’s a very active member.  Also I’d like to point out Mr. Larry Brooks, our past president, is also back there, so we’re well represented here.  

A lot has been discussed this morning about SB 115, about various things that are going on and I’m going to defer to some of my colleagues and then we will then be available to answer any questions you may have.  I’d like to say one thing though, that may not come up otherwise.  Mr. Kirwan referred to a program that the Alliance has.  We call it affectionately, Alliance University.  We train disabled veterans on starting and running small businesses, and the program is up and running and it’s quite successful.  Program is run by disabled veterans for disabled veterans at no cost to disabled veterans.  So it’s a strictly disabled veteran program.  And we’re going to be starting another class soon in the Riverside area.  
Not only do we help people start their companies, but we also assist people who have ongoing companies to improve their abilities, and also to show them how to do business with the state and federal governments.  And, again, we operate on a shoestring.  But, I think we’re doing a lot with that program.  So, I’d like to defer to, I think, Mr. Schoemake, who’d like to address the panel. 

MR. KEN SCHOEMAKE:  I’ve submitted you my written testimony, as well.  And I just want to say real briefly that the simplicity and brilliance of the legislation is that it solves all the participation problems that have been raised today.  The AGC talks about it being a preference.  It’s really not a preference.  A preference is like the small business five percent preference.  That’s a must.  It has to be included in every contract.  The SB 115 incentive does not have to be included in every contract.  So it’s not a mandate, it’s not a preference.  It’s an incentive.

The other thing is that it solves the problem that in 18 years we have not achieved three percent in any one of those years.  And so by having an incentive finally that provides us an opportunity to get some of these contracts, it solves the problem of the 18 years.  

I have an example in my personal business.  We lost an $83,500 CHP contract by $10.  If there had been just the lowest possible SB 115 incentive included in that contract, we would have won that contract.  And that’s just, there’s just hundreds of those kinds of examples for veterans.  That’s just one of the more blatant ones we lost by other amounts as well.

And then Senator Wyland’s concerns about there not being enough DVBEs.  I think you probably learned yourself in the private sector that water rises to the level that it’s going to rise to.  And I think that’s going to happen if there’s truly incentives in this program.  I think we’re going to find young men and women that want to start their own businesses because of those incentives that allow them to get started into that business.  I know among our own veterans the community people are already looking at ways they can improve their business and bring more skills to the table in this thing.  And I know I have in my own business.  I’ve looked at more services that I can provide.
Oh, and then the good faith effort—that’s been a huge problem, as you know, Senator, and it really makes that good faith effort go away, because a contractor is going to find that he doesn’t have to include an incentive, but if he includes a DVBE, he’s going to get that incentive himself.  An example in a construction contract one percent of an $18 million is going to, could be the difference between that company winning that bid and not winning that bid.  And so if they’ve included a DVBE, they’re going to get that incentive.  The contractor who bids without that incentive, they exercise a business decision.  They don’t have to include that incentive.  They could use the good faith effort, but when they lose those contracts, I think that’s essentially going to cause that program to fall by the way side.  That’s all I really have to say.

MR. TREMBLAY:  I’d like to add to that one thing.  The concern of the AGC about the incentive versus the preference, when the program is in place, as Mr. Schoemake pointed out, there’s going to be a level playing field, because every contractor will have the benefit of DVB participation so we’ll get the same amount of points.  There will be no differentiation between one and the other, and I think that’s that level playing field is all that we’ve ever looked for.  And think this achieves it.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Before we move on, Don and Ken, in terms of the path to the Administrative Law office, I mean, how do you plan to engage in those, in that public hearing 45 days plus out?  I mean, you’re following that, tracking that, how does the Legislature, how does the author make sure it remains, if you will, just what we want, intended, I think as you just mentioned, Don.  I mean, how do we do that?

MR. GONNEVILLE:  That’s very, very critical, because during that 45 day comment period we need to make sure that the right information is put out.  I think it’s like anything else.  I think if the information is accurately put out, people will understand it and will support it.  The danger is that misconceptions may crop up and we need to make sure that those misconceptions do not prevail, because any misconception could distort perceptions on the part of AGC and other people as to what the program really will do.  So we’re going to monitor it very closely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and just so I understand the process as you’re monitoring it, this, there will be in 45 days there’s this opportunity to comment.  And that means anyone can send information in in support of the proposed—would you expect?  We ought to do that, for sure in our office, I mean, would you expect that the Governor’s office would write a letter in support?  
MR. GONNEVILLE:  I would certainly hope so.  That would be very, very important to us.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, you just said it really loud and clear over the microphones, so—

MR. GONNEVILLE:  Yes, I would certainly hope the Governor’s office would in fact support that.  Since the Governor signed the bill into law a year and a half ago, it would be very, very important to reiterate their support for this.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You got a lot more bold than I do.  I want to make sure I had that on the record.  Okay, Rich, you’re next.  Go ahead.
MR. RICH DRYDEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members.  I’m Rich Dryden, the executive director of the Alliance.  I work here in Sacramento and see many of you quite often.  And it’s very interesting the comment that the vice president from Hensel Phelps made about having spent a half a million dollars.  I presume that was in bids that were too high, or if it was in outreach that ___ superb.  But, had SB 115 been in place and it had been a level playing field, one of two things would have happened.  He would have had the highest DV percentage and would have won the bid, or it would have been an even playing field and it wouldn’t have cost the state or him anything.  So that’s the beauty as has been noted here a number of times.  
And everyone talks about AGC was talking about the model of CalTrans.  Well, I’d like to point out and as Olivia noted, they have a huge department.  It’s a civil rights department much, much different than most other of the over 200 agencies of the state.  So SB 115 is tailored to be allowed those other agencies that can’t put that kind of focus and ___ program together to allow them to make their goals.  It’s easy when you’ve got a whole staff that works on doing those things for small businesses, DVBEs and disadvantaged business enterprise program which is for federal dollars.  So that makes it much simpler.  
I almost was hoping I was going to be able to say it’s nice to have AGC online.  We’ve obviously worked that issue for a long time.  There’ve been a lot of concerns about the preferencing.  And if we can get with them and I hope that AGC will meet with us and work on the understanding of the difference and the preference that we can make a lot of headway in moving this forward.  After the fact utilization of DVBEs, after award of contract is the old promises unfulfilled.  And that’s exactly what your legislation’s about to make sure that didn’t occur.

One last note of what has been discussed today in depth and that’s whether or not you can find disabled veteran business enterprises.  We are now working an MOU with DGS and have actually been given their entire data base.  We had a DVBE come forward that designed our website and designed this search function in about a $30,000 effort for us for $5,000.  Put it together and it’s the most sophisticated search function that we’ve found in the country specifically oriented towards disabled veterans business enterprises.  So as we put this together, you can actually go into multiple key word functions, get a listing and then bring that down to by zip codes, either by 94, 95, 941, 94814, however you want.  So that capability is there, and unless a niche is so narrow that a DVBE just isn’t in that business, you can find DVBEs.  That’s not a problem.  And we’ll be working more in that.  And we’ll be getting email blasts out now that the SB 115 regs are out to all our DVBEs with kind of a talking plan on how they can support it.  Thanks.

MR. GONNEVILLE:  Sir, if I may come back to a GLAVC project for a moment.  When the results came out in the apparent bidders, we noticed that Amoroso and Barnhart numbers were very low.  So I met personally with the president of Amoroso Construction and the leadership staff of Barnhart  Construction, and I found both of these companies to be very, very cooperative and willing to work with us to get the numbers up well beyond the three percent minimum.  They know that a lot of that will come downstream and the level three, four, and five  contracts, and they’re both working with us very closely to make sure the numbers in fact, do increase.  And this is all on a voluntary basis.  So we were very gratified at their response on this.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, Bob.

MR. BOB MULZ:  First of all, my name is Bob Mulz.  I’m the president of the Elite Network in San Diego, headquartered out of San Diego.  We have unique ability as a 501C19 and to represent the veterans not only in our areas, but also across the country, and have created some 17 chapters as of today and they’re growing quickly.

I’d like to address, because we kind of like to look at the issues as glass half full instead of half empty.  But, going back to this good faith effort being a failure, I’d like to reiterate and possibly add with your permission, if I could hand these GLAVC project folders and I’ll go a little further into that.  The key thing with most of the contractors, if I can just stop on an issue on that for awhile, if anything, I think legislation is extremely important, but they also, that I learned in Vietnam when we were being shot at on the ship, we had a CO who was a pretty educated leader and a fabulous man, and he said as we were being shot at in the ____ Gulf, you gotta wanna.  And those words stuck with me for a long, long time.  If these people don’t wanna, we can legislate everything to death and beat them up and go to court and we gotta try to continue to pound on them to make them gotta wanna.  
One of the things that you’re looking at right there, when they said Phelps, the gentleman from Hensel Phelps came up and mentioned the fact that he had to spend all this money, we are a group of volunteers.  There’s no one in our organization gets paid.  Very often I spend more time with the SDVOB and DVBE network problems.  Then I do my own business.  But, with that said, these people should have been able to, we made every bid walk that there was on this GLAVC project.  We made both the mandatory and the voluntary bid walks.  We had a gentleman out there that was asked to speak on numerous occasions by both CDVA people and DGS to present this, if you want it for no other reason call it a joint venture or a group of men and good qualified construction people.  If you look through our list you’ll see there’s every C number, every construction number in the book.  There’s commodities suppliers.  It’s broken out all the way down the road.  So to say they couldn’t find anybody or they had a hard time finding anybody, not only did they have the Alliance’s website, but they had DGS which is linked, I believe to both the websites, both the elite network as well as, so I really don’t understand that.  I come to try to do the issues of finding a solution, not just chasing the problem.  
Part of the things that I see is the way the whole system is put together which makes it kind of hard for commodities people in some cases which are a big percentage of your DVBEs.  When you say construction, a lot of the commodities guys can’t even spell it.  So, bit if we could start with things like, you know, okay, we got a building that’s gone up and it needs paint, let’s go to the guys that sell paint.  Now we got a lot of guys that sell paint in this state that are commodity guys.  
Also some of the other issues we might look at—I think training with regards somehow added on that this committee could look at.  Right now, I have something up to DGS and they’re trying to work on it very hard.  And I must commend them for it.  Take, for example, Corrections might increase their numbers if people were told in Corrections that you only have to have one bid from zero to $4,999.  Right now if this committee was to get on the phone and call, a lot of the buyers or the people on the deck plates in these different Correction areas, they’ll find that, oh, no, I have to get three or four or five bids.  
Now, when you’re talking about a DVBE and you’re talking about a youngster who just got back and doesn’t have a lot of money, when I say $5,000, they salivate.  Okay.  So, I’ll take 10 $5,000 every day.  And I’m a big guy.  I got money.  I got the time to come up here.  So that’s the issue that we’re talking about.
I think when we talk about the pool, everybody’s concerned about the pool.  Kind of a sad way of looking at it, but this pool is going to be a tsunami.  It’s not going to be a pool.  We’re going to have more people coming back.  The good news is we’re getting a lot more back.  The bad news is the ones that are coming back have got severe, more severe injuries, can’t go back on the jobs they used to have because they’ve lost hands or legs or hearing when they’re truck drivers and things like that.  What are you going to do with a 36-year old kid that’s got two kids that was a truck driver, went to Fallujah, and I have one in my network, lost his hearing.  Guess what he can’t do anymore?  He can’t drive a truck.  What are you going to do, send him to college and make him a rocket scientist?  I don’t think so.  
So what do you do?  You try to get him into the business in his own trucking business where he can hire people to run short hauls or whatever.  That’s outside the box thinking.  Okay, that’s what we got to start looking at.  And with that said, I always try to give an answer.  And hopefully, I’ve given some here that we might want to investigate.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Bob.  Warren.

MR. WALSH:  Thank you.  I just want to touch on some of the things that were said earlier as specifically from the representative from CalTrans spoke about the emergency contracts and how they include disabled vets on that.  I was involved in that along with about a half a dozen other people in getting CalTrans to even have a list of emergency contractors and to include the disabled vets.  And that was Andrew Pote, so that would have been 1996 or ’97, somewhere around there.  And since then, none of the vets who were involved in that has received a call that placed on the list has received a call from.  So I don’t know how well to really do on those emergency contracts.

And then the other thing that was discussed was about how subcontractors are not bondable.  There is no provision of law that requires a subcontractor to be bonded.  And that’s through the responsibility of the prime.  And that to me, that’s an excuse to not use disabled vets. 

But, I would like to go to what Bob talked about where you have to want to do this.  I think that’s the main problem we have.  Because of the good faith effort, you have a lot of, more than a lot, of prime contractors who, and we go through it every day.  The phone rings, what’s your name.  That’s all they want.  They don’t want, they don’t know anything about the job.  They don’t know—and this is nothing new to you.  You’ve heard this time and time again.  But, how do you deal with an issue like that?  How do you get these people to want to do this?  One way that I thought of would be for one of the members of this committee to offer up a Senate resolution.  And at the top of that resolution would be to advise the PERS Board to divest any holdings they have in these large companies that are state contractors, but routinely flout the goal by using the good faith effort.  And that would get the attention of a lot of people.  And that would be one method to bring about some change in this issue.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  You give the Senate too much credit.  But, I do appreciate the comments.  I just have a couple questions for the group and then we’ll, Senator Wyland will have some questions, as well, but let’s talk about the mechanics that we talked about, folks not really knowing where you are, what you do, how you’re included.  It’s kind of how do we increase the pool, the question Senator Wyland and I talked about.  Is that, from your vantage point, do we need more work at the state level or our website need to be friendlier?  Is it, and I know it’s beyond the website which is almost a different way to say good faith effort, which is ____ website up.  So, you know, I don’t know if people checked it or how many hits were on it, but at the end of the day, it, you know, becomes a checkmark on someone’s list.  Say, I went to the website just to find someone to use.  
But, there is some sort of issue here with relationships.  I think, you know, Don hit it perfectly, you know.  He looked at participation on a veterans homes.  Didn’t look like we were on track.  Don went to meet with the president.  He went to meet with the other company and now he’s confident that it will be up beyond three percent because of a relationship that was built. 
So what’s the way to attack this?  I mean, can we go and do relationships with every single large issuer of contracts, or do we have to go directly to the primes?  I mean, what’s your best piece of advice as we go forward?
MR. GONNEVILLE:  I’d like to address that, if I could, sir. And I’d like to go back to what Mr. Mulz said about you gotta wanna.  Before you gotta wanna, you gotta know about it.  And, you know, it’s been, I think a lot of companies have really gotten hooked on a good faith effort.  It’s easier in some sense than to go out and find DVBEs.  That’s why SB 115 is so important, because it’s going to actually create the desire to work with DVBEs as opposed to doing a good faith effort.  So we need to dispel the good faith effort as being a viable option and focus on what a win/win situation can be created by actually utilizing disabled veteran businesses.
And yes, also, the one on one is often the best way to do anything, because no one regardless of whether he’s in a very low or very high position, no one likes to be forced into doing something that they don’t understand.  And by creating an awareness by going out and creating dialogue and opening up communications with the various companies of prime contractors and as well as agency heads at the state level.  It’s very, very important, because then the emphasis goes down and when it comes from the top it has a lot more importance than when it comes up from bottom.

And so we’re trying to do that.  We’re trying to get with the right organizational people both at the state level and private companies to create this dialogue, to show how a viable program can be created and maintained, and we’re realizing some success.  But, we have a long way to go.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Wyland, any questions?

SENATOR WYLAND:  No, not really, other than to say I think we’re all trying to march down the same road here.  And appreciate all of your efforts in that regard.  It is tough, because we know there’s some challenges here and I think we’ve actually come up with some solutions.  But, I think all of us want to make sure that the individuals like that young man you’re talking about who came back from Iraq with a hearing problem, that we do something above and beyond.  
Which actually raises one question from me.  Is there, and I was just asking our consultant here, is there a way of finding out what the nature of the various disabilities are?  The number of people in the state?  Just data.  Who they are, what periods they were in the service, what kinds of disabilities they have, and we can talk afterwards.  We can talk afterwards, because I’m used to, you know, it’s sort of like having the pool to hire from.  I’d sure kinda like to know who we got, because the programs maybe different.  We may be either, there may be men like the man you’re talking about that we want to do, you know, starting your own business is wonderful.  I want to see more and more people do it.  But, there may be some that it’s not a good match for and we need to come up with other things for them.  And so, because I think the underlying issue in all of this is we want to recognize service of these individuals and do what we can to help them.  

So thank you, Senator Florez, for calling this hearing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And let me just close, if I could, and say that Senator Wyland said everything I wanted to say, so let’s just—no that’s good.  Keep us on time, and I want to thank Senator Wyland for allowing us to do this jointly.

I do hope as we move forward, I know this is within the purview in many cases of the Veterans Affairs, but on the G.O. side we also have jurisdiction over all contracts, pretty much, DGS wise, and that includes quite a bit.  So I hope that we can establish a yearly, at least while I'm here.  I’ve got three years left and Senator Wyland’s got, you know, in term limits he’s kind of, you know, the long serving member here.  So maybe I can watch from afar when I come back and visit the Legislature.  But, I do want to say that I think there is some value in these types of hearings, because I think, and Senator Wyland would probably agree that, you know, many cases change can take place without legislation.  And it just kind of happens.  And it happens sometimes because you have oversight hearings and things magically happen sometimes as you get ready for those oversight hearings, and I’m just a big believer in that.  
So I do want to thank Senator Wyland.  I want to thank you, the veterans particularly, not only for your service, but for your attention.  And I want to thank the Administration, as well, for being very forthright and giving us a picture today of what we face and I think now it’s Senator Wyland and I to figure out how we can in a bipartisan manner produce some real changes here that might make a difference.

The nice thing about voting on a budget, it is two-thirds budget, which means we have Democrats and Republicans that need to agree on something and hopefully we can try to craft something funding wise with some language working with the Departments that workable.  And we only say that because Department of Finance isn’t here.  And so we want to make sure that we’re forcing that on everybody sitting here.
So if Mr. Genest is listening, we’re trying to make it happen and your departments aren’t asking, but Senator Wyland and I have identified some positives that could be worked on.  So I do want to thank you.  And I guess Senator Wyland, we can adjourn.  Thank you all, very much.
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